



2023/2024 Annual Report

# Table of Contents

1.		Our	Sponsors	3
2.		Offic	ce Bearers 2023/2024	4
3.		Com	mittee Reports	4
	3.3	1	Presidents Report	4
	3.2	2	Secretary Report	5
	3.3	3	Treasurers Report	7
	3.4	4	Registrar Report	3
	3.5	5	Records and Rankings Report	3
	3.6	6	Championships Report	Э
	3.7	7	Coaching Report	J
	3.8	8	Canteen Report10	J
	3.9	9	Uniform Report1	1
	3.3	10	First Aid Report	1
	3.3	11	Member Protection Report	1
4		Cha	mpionships1	1
	4.3	1	Zone Championships	1
	4.2	2	Regional Championships1	1
	4.3	3	State Championships	2
5		Awa	rds12	2
	5.:	1	Eunice Harris Memorial Award	2
	5.2	2	Keith Wilmot Award13	3
	5.3	3	Ron Finlayson Encouragement Award14	4
	5.4	4	Bob Walkley Highest Point Scorer Perpetual Award19	5
	5.!	5	Special Award Recipients 2023/202410	6
	5.0	6	Age Champions10	6
	5.7	7	Encouragement Awards	7
6		Reco	ords18	3
	6.3	1	Records set in 2023/2024	3
	6.2	2	Centre records at end 2023/2024	3
7		Min	utes of Annual General Meeting 2021/2022	
8.			d Financial Statements	

# 1. Our Sponsors

Thank you to the businesses who have sponsored our club this year! Please support the businesses that support our athletes.











# 2. Office Bearers 2023/2024

The following office bearers were voted in at our 2023 AGM. See Attachment 1 for AGM Minutes.

Name
Christine Murphy (Acting)
Jet James
Zoe Brookes
Christine Murphy
Raewyn Burden
Celeste and Sharon Boonaerts
Rochelle Martin
Vacant
Deborah Van Breugel
Kev Wills
Tom Szymanski
Vacant
Judi Brookes
Deborah Van Breugel
Vacant
Tom Szymanski
Christine Murphy

# 3. Committee Reports

#### 3.1 Presidents Report

This year is the 40<sup>th</sup> year of Woy Woy Little Athletics existence and is my third season as President of the Club. While I was not intending to take up the role again this year, we had no one nominate, so I covered the role while still doing the role I had nominated for, as well as

backfilling several other vacant roles. I have continued to have good support from both current and former committee members and a small group of parent helpers who help out with the many tasks needed to keep the club running. Nevertheless, it has been a big job, and I will step down next year as my children are no longer young enough to do Little Athletics. I will continue to assist the committee in an unofficial capacity.

In most ways the club has continued to thrive again this year. Our registration numbers were up. We were successful in receiving sponsorship funds from Ettalong Diggers and Bendigo bank. We also received support from Boost Juice and Bakers Delight at Woy Woy who provide valuable in-kind donations and give award certificates for our athletes on a weekly basis.

We end the season with a healthy bank balance, even though we ran at a small loss this year. We set up a high interest term deposit with our excess funds so we can earn a little interest in the future which will help cover some of the ongoing expenses going forward.

The one ongoing struggle we have is in having enough people step up to help run the club. I am very grateful to those who stepped up to help us run every week. As this year is year is our  $40^{th}$  year anniversary, it is comforting to reflect on the fact that in all this time we have run on parent power, which is quite an achievement, and we are all looking forward to our little 40 year celebration this year at presentation.

There have been many highlights this year. A fun Coles Banana Relay night early in the season with prizes donated from the Central Coast Aquapark were a big hit. There were plenty of inter-club carnivals and competitions which some children participated in far and wide across the whole state. Thirty-eight athletes registered for Zone Competition this year, which was held at, Mingara and the team bought home 42 medals despite the heat that weekend. Twenty-four athletes went on to represent us at Regional Championships at Glendale. Five selected to compete at State. I congratulate all these athletes for their enthusiasm and commitment.

It goes without saying, I would like to thank my fellow committee members for all their support this year. To Zoe Brookes our hard-working secretary for doing that work in the background as well as backing up in the canteen on a regular basis. Deb Van Breugel and Rochelle Martin who both do multiple roles on the committee as well as age managing and coaching on throws. To Judi and Ken Brookes for managing the canteen and raising much needed funds for the club for the second year in a row. A special mention to Tom Szymanski who set up and bought in the equipment each week, as well as doing some of the line marking and starting on the straight track when needed and to Celeste and Sharon Boonaerts who have taken on managing the results which is a big job. Also to Kevin Wills who goes above and beyond as our Officer for coaching.

A very big thank you to our new committee members, Raewyn Burden who came on board as registrar, who has been diligent in learning the registration system. Also a big welcome to Jet James for stepping up into the role of Vice President this year. Both have been valuable members of the committee bringing new perspectives and energy to the club.

I would also like to take the opportunity to thank our volunteers who are not on the committee but help on a regular basis. We simply could not operate on Friday night without

you. Sylvia Turnbull, Terry McCusker, Mitch Evans and Luka Szymanski for starting on a regular basis and to Natalie Ham and Deb Scahill for their work on the straight track computer. To Natasha Day and Patrick Turnbull for putting out and putting away equipment each week. To Holly Ashford and Caitlin McLennan for entering the field results which is no small task. To Naomi Hart for assisting in the canteen and helping out with social-media this season. Then there are the Parent Age Managers who are really are the backbone of the club. It goes without saying we would not be able to run without you. So you can see It really does take a village to keep it going and every bit of help we get makes a difference.

A special thank you to our volunteer coaches particularly, Kevin Wills and Ed Batten who attend every week and we would not have a club without you. To all the coaches who come when they can, It goes without saying that your contribution is central to our mission.

Last but not least, thank you to our generous sponsors, Ettalong Diggers, Bendigo Bank, BOOST Juice Deepwater Plaza, Bakers Delight and Bunnings for supporting our club again this year. Support from Diggers has allowed us to hold our presentations nights and provided new equipment such as two-way radios to be used on the track which makes everyone life easier. Bendigo provided funds for a new branded club marque. Bunnings provides gas for the BBQ and Boost Juice Deepwater Plaza and Bakers Delight Woy Woy help with all those little extras to give encouragement to our kids and helps to keep our fees low, so we are very grateful for your ongoing support.

It is always great to see new families, carers, parents and grandparents involved. This is what makes each week come together for the kids. Yes, it is a lot of work, but with good humour, enthusiasm and everyone's involvement, our children have a place to have fun, be active, cheer each other on and maybe even start on a professional sporting career. Building community is its own reward and does not happen if we do not step up to make it so.

Between us we have made it all happen for another year so thank you.

Christine Murphy (Acting as President)

#### 3.2 Secretary Report

During the 23/24 season we filled most of the Committee positions and welcomed several new Executive Committee Members (thanks Raewyn and Jett). It is great to have new people who are passionate about supporting children's sport volunteer their time to help run our Club. Community sporting groups such as ours rely on active committees, and it is an honour to be part of such a committed group of people.

This season our committee met on the third Tuesday of most months via Zoom. The Committee met on 8 occasions during the year. Minutes of the committee meetings are available on request and stored on the central WWPLAC Google Drive. All other official paperwork in relation to the operation of the Club was completed and submitted as required by the NSW Little Athletics Association.

Thanks in the most part to a government grant, in October 2023 we were able to replace all our throwing equipment, high jump cross bars and provide some additional hurdles for our competitors. Thank you NSW Office of Sport.

Finally, I would like to personally thank our current Treasurer Christine Murphy for her unbridled commitment to Woy Woy Little Athletics as she steps away from the Committee after many years of dedication. Without a President for season 23-24, Christine assumed many of the responsibilities for both the Treasurer and President roles as well as provided considerable time to ensure the smooth running of our weekly competition nights. Thank you Christine, you will be missed!

Zoe Brookes Secretary

#### 3.3 Treasurers Report

The club continues to have a healthy bank balance flowing from the hard work of volunteers, good financial management historically and higher numbers of registered athletes this season.

The accounts have been audited by Meany and Associates and the full financial report is included as an attachment at the end of this report. At the close of this season, we are in a viable position for next year. Our Balance sheet showed we started the year with \$63,294 in the bank and we and closed off the books this year with \$62,078 held in our accounts.

The Committee agreed to set up a \$30,000 fixed term deposit to realise some interest and untied income going forward.

Our club's total income for the year was \$26,702 which was down around \$5,000. Canteen sales were down a little from the previous year, representing about half the above reduction in turnover. We also did not receive any grants or hire out equipment this year. Although we did receive slightly more in registration revenue, given we had increased numbers and slightly more sponsorship revenue compared to last year.

The canteen account opened with a balance of \$17,402 and closed with a balance of \$6,939. We took \$13,000 from this account to establish the Fixed Term Deposit. We thank all canteen volunteers for their excellent work. The canteen made a tidy profit of \$2,800 which is our clubs most valuable fundraising exercise. The canteen expenses were less this year but proportionately higher compared to canteen income and this came as no surprise in line with the general increase in just about all grocery items in the last 12 months.

All these factors combined to have the club running at a small loss of \$2,729.11 overall. The club should consider making a small increase to fees in the next season given we have not done so for many years. Although there are some one off factors that contributed to the loss. High inflation being issue across the board, line marking required almost weekly compared to other years when it has been fortnightly. The cost of trophies has increased somewhat from the previous years. The club also agreed to pay the cost of Zone and regional competition this year given many families are struggling with the cost of living. There have also been a few

extra costs related to the 40<sup>th</sup> Anniversary celebrations as we came towards the end of the year. Given the good cash position of the club, the committee is comfortable with the situation and the overall position of the club is very healthy.

Christine Murphy (Treasurer)

#### 3.4 Registrar Report

The 2023-2024 season for Woy Woy Peninsula Little Athletics Club (WWPLAC) as we celebrated our 40<sup>th</sup> Anniversary was a wonderful one in terms of members, and we did prove Beyonce's sage words that 'girls run the world' (as well as WWPLAC!).

This season we had 215 active members, which was an increase of 8.5% from the 2022-2023 season. 114 of our athletes were female with 101 male athletes registered. 66% of our athletes were registered in the 6-10 age groups with our Under 10 age group our largest with 32 athletes over both the male and female groups. Our Under 7 Girls were our largest gender group with 18 participants registered (out of 27 in the entire age group).

Despite changes to the structure of NSW Little Athletics and Athletics Australia registration and fees, WWPLAC did not increase their fees for the 2023-2024 season to ensure we continued to be a reasonably priced sport for our families. We also offered our committee members discounts on the WWPLAC fees to thank them for the time they spend helping the club grow and run efficiently. The committee member discount will again be offered in the 2024-2025 season, so I encourage you to join the committee and be engaged in how you want to see your club run in the future for your children.

Looking forward to a bigger and better 2024-2025 – bring a friend!

Raewyn Burden (Registrar)

#### 3.5 Records and Rankings Report

2023-2024 has been another great season for Woy Woy Little Athletics. It has been an enjoyable experience once again to be involved in this club. The enthusiasm of the children and young adults is great to see, and we have enjoyed the satisfaction and success of each athlete as they crossed the finish line of the circular track this season.

Thank you to Tom Szymanski for setting up the electronic circular track timer, synchronising the starter gun with the laptop race start, this has been very helpful improvement this year and made the timing of the races much easier. We have also had new starters training and taking on the role and the synched start has supported this process, thank you to Terry, Mitch, Ed and all our regular and spontaneous starters.

Great communication between our volunteers, flag waving, walkie-talkies and following the track lists supplied each week by Christine has helped each week flow well.

We have also been supported by the age managers, other parents/family members and our LA athletes themselves who have kept the finish line and marshalling area clear and listened to instructions when needed. The attitude of respect and helpfulness has had our club support every athlete to succeed in their achievements.

We have seen new records made this season: Congratulations to Sienna S U17G in 400m, Oliver S U17B in 100m Hurdles, Kobe A U7B for Discus and Leo T U11B also for Discus. What a wonderful way for Sienna and Oliver as they 'age out' of our club, breaking records in their final season after both showing such dedication and excellent achievements over so many years.

There have been so many great Personal Bests this season and these have been celebrated each week as we all yell "PB for ....." to delighted and tired athletes as they finish their events.

Records and Ranking results have been used in deciding the Perpetual Awards as well as the allocations of Age Championship trophies, and it is a testament to our athletes as well as the dedication of their families and our Committee and volunteers that we see these great achievements. Well done to everyone!

Sharing this role between us has again been a great way for two busy women to enjoy and juggle the job. As Mum and Aunty, we have both enjoyed being in a role that lets us see our kids participate while having flexibility to manage fulltime work commitments. We encourage other people in our club to 'buddy up' if you'd like to be involved but feel you can't take on a role on your own. A huge thank you to everyone who has given their time to volunteer on Friday nights and kept our club going for 40 years, so our kids can continue to compete.

In particular, an immense and heartfelt thank you to Christine, our President, for going above and beyond in so many ways and with a spirit of generosity to our club and every person in it and to Tom who gets the oval ready for us in all the hours and efforts that takes.

Celeste & Sharon Boonaerts (Records and Rankings Officers)

#### 3.6 Championships Report

Zone championships were held at Mingara on the 9th - 10th December 2023. Thirty-eight athletes were registered to participate and twenty-eight athletes competed over the weekend, with 24 qualifying for regional competition. Zone was severely disrupted by heat this year with some events being moved several times over the weekend.

The Regional Championships were held at Glendale sports complex on the weekend 3<sup>rd</sup> and 4<sup>th</sup> of February. Five athletes qualified for State, although two ended up being unable to compete due illness. The State Championships were held at Sydney Olympic Park on the 22nd - 24th March. Congratulations to all athletes who competed.

As always, we thank our athletes and their parents for making the effort to represent our club and for taking on volunteer duties associated with these competitions.

Also a big thankyou to also to our volunteer club coaches Kevin Willis and Ed Batten for their weekly commitment. We are grateful for your time and commitment.

Rochelle Martín
(Championships Officer)

#### 3.7 Coaching Report

Club coaches were again available throughout the season. Kevin Wills was on hand on Tuesday and Thursday as well as attending various championships throughout the year. Ed Batten was available on Fridays for coaching before, and to give assistance during competition. We have a group of about 10 athletes who do additional training on a regular basis. We also had some organised for training with coaches from other clubs throughout the season in the lead up to Regional and State competition. Our athletes gain a lot from the extra support given. A shout out to Rochelle Martin and Slav Arkhipov for their assistance on coaching Shot Put with the younger athletes this year.

Kevin Wills
Officer for Coaching

#### 3.8 Canteen Report

The 2023/24 season we were blessed with mostly good weather with only a couple of nights being declared a wash out. The menu and prices, (with the exception of some lollies) remained unchanged from the previous year. The season and sales started off strong but after Christmas break, numbers were hard to cater for. We seemed to under cater or over cater, resulting in some food wastage, hence loss of profits. Having said that this year the canteen turned over between \$300 and \$600 per week. The Canteen's total income was \$6,652 and expenses were \$3,851 leaving us with a total profit of \$2,801.

I believe that the canteen menu offered this year, and in previous years worked well, but new blood in the canteen opens it up to new ideas. A very special thanks to Zoe Brookes and Naomi Hart for helping every week in the canteen and to Zoe for running the canteen in my absence. A special thanks to Ken for organising the Bar-B-Que each week, and to the volunteers from each age group each week that assisted him, and also to Ric Brookes for always being available to help where needed. A thankyou to Greg Llewellyn for helping when he was available as well. At the end of this current season, following Presentation Day, Ken and I will be stepping down from the role of running the Canteen, as we want to take the opportunity to make available our weekends. If we are able, we will come down and help anywhere on the field where assistance is needed without committing to a permanent committee member next season.

A huge thankyou to Chris and Tom, who work tirelessly for the Club, and without them there would not be a Club. I hope that we see lots of new faces on the Committee in the coming Season, and in this respect, we wish them well. Warm Regards

Judí Brookes

(Officer for Canteen)

#### 3.9 Uniform Report

Uniform sales are now online with only a small amount of older or second-hand stock being sold through the club. Sportsmagic, our supplier mainly did a great job although there seemed to be some supply chain issues with some delay with a few orders on several occasions this year. This year we received \$364 from Sportsmagic which is donation based on a percentage of the club's uniform sales.

```
Deborah Van Breugel (Officer for Uniforms)
```

#### 3.10 First Aid Report

There were no first aid incidents to report this year.

```
Tom Szymanskí
(Officer for First Aid)
```

#### 3.11 Member Protection Report

There were no member protection incidents to report this year.

```
Christine Murphy
(Member Protection Officer)
```

# 4 Championships

#### 4.1 Zone Championships

Zone championships were held at Mingara on the 9<sup>th</sup> - 10<sup>th</sup> December 2023. A team of 38 athletes represented the club. The weather was extremely hot, and the schedule was changed several times both in the lead up, and throughout the weekend, which caused a number of athletes to be unable to compete. Nevertheless 24 athletes progressed through to the Regional Championships this year.

Our Zone team bought home 12 Gold, 14 Silver and 16 Bronze medals medals.

#### 4.2 Regional Championships

We had 24 athletes compete at Regional Championships, which were held at the Hunter Sports Centre at Glendale over the weekend of the 2-3-4<sup>th</sup> of February 2024.

#### 2023/2024 Regional Championships Representatives

Lola Adeleke U10G Discus, 200m High Jump

Constantine Arkhipov	/ U9B	Long Jump, 200m, 800m
Sophia Arkhipov	U12G,	1500m, 400m, 200m, 800m
Sebastian Banks	U8B,	60mH,100m,400, Shot Put
Dylan Caulfield	U11B,	80mH, Shot Put
Zoe Coulson	U11G,	Shot Put
Georgie Dean	U10G,	Discus
Chris Doroudgar	U12B,	100m, 200m
River James	U9G,	60mH, Long Jump
Malia Keenan	U10G,	800m, High Jump
Otis Keenan	U8B,	700m, 70m
Sanderson Keyser	U17B,	400m, 800m
Quinn Llewellyn	U14G,	1500m, 400m, 3000m, 800m
Eva Lynch	U7G,	Triple Jump, 100mH, Long Jump
Emyer Mutton	U11B,	Shot Put
Bronte Scahill	U15G,	1500m, 400m, 800m
Zoe Smith	U8G,	Long Jump, 700m, Shot Put
Alex Stevenson	U9B,	60mH, 400m, 800m
Ella Stevenson	U11,	1500m
Leo Terjesen-Soem	U11B,	Javelin, Discus, Shot Put
Lola Terjesen-Soem	U9G,	High Jump
Beau Wallace	U10B,	100m, 70m, Discus
Harrison Ward	U8B,	60mH, Shot Put
Jamin Wu	U10B,	60mH, High Jump,

## 4.3 State Championships

Five athletes progressed to State Championships from Regional and three competed at Sydney Olympic Park Athletics Centre (SOPAC) 22<sup>nd</sup>-23<sup>rd</sup> March 2024. Congratulations to all athletes who competed and represented themselves and our club so well.

#### 2023/24 State Championship Representatives

Bronte Scahill	U15G,	1500m, 800m
Leo Terjesen-Soem	U11B,	Shot Put, Javelin, Discus
Quinn Llewellyn	U14G,	3000m

#### 5 Awards

#### 5.1 Eunice Harris Memorial Award

This is the club's highest award. The criteria for recipients are current year age champion, sportsmanship, attendance at club training, representation at various carnivals outside club level, and representation at the NSW State Championships. It may be awarded to both a male and female athlete, and an athlete can only win the award once. The decision is made by the Committee at the end of the season.

## 5.1.1 Previous Award Recipients

Season	Male	Female
1988-1989	Raymond Hall	Megan Underhill
1991-1992	Joshua Ross	Angela Murphy
1992-1993	Jamie McMaster	Kylie Coombes
1993-1994	Adam Lovie	Danielle Edwards
1994-1995	Sean Heath	Tracie Shackleton
1995-1996	Dean McGoldrick	Kara Shackleton
1996-1997	No award winner	Katherine Peksis
1997-1998	Chris Wood	Sarah Walkley
1998-1999	Aaron Hamstra	Jessica Morrell
1999-2000	Luke Peat	Susan Sobczsak
2000-2001	John Crocker	Corrine Edwards
2001-2002	Luke Donahue	Samantha Tomlin
2002-2003	Brayden Wiliame	Amanda Thorpe
2003-2004	No award winner	Elle Peters
2004-2005	No award winner	Amanda Bartrim
2005-2006	Dylan Buhagiar	Jenna Chapman
2006-2007	No award winner	No award winner
2007-2008	No award winner	No award winner
2008-2009	No award winner	No award winner
2009-2010	No award winner	Mikhali Clune
2010-2011	No award winner	Mikayla Sonter
2011-2012	No award winner	No award winner
2012-2013	Lachlan Rousell	No award winner
2013-2014	No award winner	No award winner
2014-2015	No award winner	No award winner
2015-2016	Luke Brown	Kyla Tucker
2016-2017	Cameron Steer	Tahnee Ball
2017-2018	No award winner	Jessie Blackwell
2019-2020	State Cancelled.	State Cancelled
2020-2021	Oliver Ham	No award Sienna Scahill
2021-2022. 2022-2023.	Oliver Szymanski No Award	Bonnie Hardman
2022 2023.	INO AWAI'U	Bonnic Hardinan

#### 5.1.2 Eunice Harris Memorial Award for 2023/24 Season

Bronte Scahill U15G Leo Terjesen-Some U11B

#### 5.2 Keith Wilmot Award

This award is calculated using the athlete's improved personal performance over the season. The recipients of other perpetual trophies are excluded from this award.

#### **5.2.1 Previous Award Recipients**

Season	Male	Female
1992-1993	No award winner	Kara Shackleton
1993-1994	Daniel Heilbron	No award winner
1994-1995	Jason Wright	No award winner
1995-1996	Jonathon Mark	Katherine Peksis
1996-1997	Grant Quick	Charmaine Samsley

1997-1998	Michael Paterson	Rachel Woods
1998-1999	Adam Rosenburg	Hannah Leslie
1999-2000	Jay Duckworth	Samantha Mainwaring
2000-2001	Mitchell McAskill	Tamara Mainwaring
2001-2002	Reece Jones	Elise Cansdale
2002-2003	Bryden Leach	Melissa Ford
2003-2004	Nicholas Car	Rebecca Dick
2004-2005	Jordan O'Donnell	Rochelle Martin
2005-2006	Luke Boxsell	Morgan Thorndyke
2006-2007	William Bishop	Danielle Ross
2007-2008	Riley Shipton	Neve Parsons
2008-2009	Benjamin Rogers	Kayla Sutherland
2009-2010	Kane Silman	Sophie Williamson
2010-2011	Luke Brown	Tahlia Makepeace
2011-2012	Calan Tucker	Zali McGann
2012-2013	Benjamin Rogers	Emily Yannis
2013-2014	Benjamin Rogers	Alina Watson
2014-2015	Lachlan Rousell	Heather Snape
2015-2016	Luca Quitadamo	Morgan Charlton
2016-2017	Tyrone Dorrell	Talia Field
2017-2018	Dylan Ryan	Yuki Rodden
2018-2019	Alex McCoombe Lopez	Gabriella Potestas
2019-2020	Ronan Field	Gabriella Potestas
2020-2021	Ryan McElroy	Clementine Kelly
2021-2022 2022-2023	Harrison Brookes	Chloe McLennan Similan Maitland
2022-2023	Hayden Payton	Sillilidii Maltialia

#### 5.2.2 Keith Wilmot Award Recipient for 2023/24 Season

Harry Schasser U11B Kirra Crameri U12G

### **5.3 Ron Finlayson Encouragement Award**

Ron Finlayson has been a strong supporter of the Club for many years through his role on the Board of the Ettalong Beach Club and wanted to personally donate an award. Ron requested that the encouragement award be made to both an Under 12 Girl and Boy who have attempted their best throughout the season and all other recipients of the trophies are excluded. The Committee decides the Award winners after taking into account the recommendations made by the Under 12 Age Managers for their encouragement awards.

#### 5.3.1 Previous Award Recipients

Season	Male	Female
2000-2001	Paul Steel	Sally Whatnall
2001-2002	Matt Kennedy	Rachael Leslie
2002-2003	Timothy Alderson	Jessica O'Keeffe
2003-2004	Craig Wilcox	Katie Wood
2005-2006	Sean O'Keeffe	Sharni Williams
2006-2007	no award winner	No award
2007-2008	Jacob Smith	No Award
2008-2009	no award winner	Jessamy King
2009-2010	no award winner	Danielle Ross

2010-2011	no award winner	Shallee Robertson
2011-2012	no award winner	Abbey Johnson
2012-2013	Rory Channon	Emma Crocker
2013-2014	Luke Brown	Isabella Holt
2014-2015	Jack Wilson	Jasmine Jones
2015-2016	Jack Johnson	Kyla Wadeson
2016-2017	Calan Tucker	Olivia Sheehan
2017-2018	Lucas Clarke	Ellena Gray
2018-2019	Jayden Prouse	Isabella Goyen
2019-2020	Oliver Szymanski	Sophia Grey
2020-2021	Harpur Hagen	No Award
2021-2022	AJ Joffrin	No Award
2022-2023	No Award	Summer Mutton

#### 5.3.2 Ron Finlayson Encouragement award for 2023/24 Season

Charlie Brisbin U12 Girls Ty Williams U12 Boys

#### 5.4 Bob Walkley Highest Point Scorer Perpetual Award

Bob Walkley is a life member and contributed greatly to the Club during his 33 years of involvement. This trophy is awarded to the highest overall point scorer. Points are awarded as follows 5 for 1st, 4 for 2nd, 3 for 3rd, 2 for 4th, 1 for 5th in each event in which an athlete competes. As the age groups have a differing number of events, averaging is used to assess the points equally, however for an age group to be considered, there must be more than 5 athletes registered in that age group.

#### **5.4.1 Previous Award Recipients**

Season	Name	Age Group
2014-2015	Sophie Pratt	Under 8
2015-2016	Charlotte Rousell	Under 10
2016-2017	Charlotte Rousell	Under 11
2017-2018	Calan Tucker	Under 13
2018-2019	Bonnie Hardman	Under 9
2019-2020	Annika Graham	Under 6
2020-2021	Lola Adeleke	Under 7
2021-2022	Jake Pittman	Under 7
2022-2023	Kobe Adeleke	Under 6

#### 5.4.2 Bob Walkley Award Recipient for 2023/24 Season

Kobe Adeleke U7 Boy

#### 5.5 Special Award Recipients 2023/2024

#### 5.5.1 100% Attendance

This year we had 15 Athletes who had 100% Attendance.

Boys	Girls
<ul> <li>Toby Smith</li> <li>Kobe Adeleke</li> <li>Maximilian Macey</li> <li>Leo Terjesen-Soem</li> <li>Marlon Boonaerts</li> <li>Theo Boonaerts</li> <li>Sanderson Keyser</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Zoe Smith</li> <li>Lola Terjesen-Soem</li> <li>Ella Rahe</li> <li>Jasmine Wols</li> <li>Phoebe Pittman</li> <li>Lola Adeleke</li> <li>Isla Mumford</li> <li>Ava Boonaerts</li> </ul>

#### 5.5.2 Five and ten-year service awards

Awards are issued to recognise continuous membership of our club. In 2023-24 the following athletes are recognised for their commitment.

Five-year service awards	Ten-year service awards	
<ul> <li>Theo Boonaerts</li> <li>Marlon Boonaerts</li> <li>Payton Minett</li> <li>Ethan Minett</li> <li>Ava Boonaerts</li> <li>Alexis Minett</li> <li>Kyah Williams</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Oliver Szymanski</li> <li>Eva Lynch</li> <li>Sanderson Keyser</li> </ul>	

## **5.6 Age Champions**

A huge congratulations to our Age Champions for 2023-24. Points for Age Champions are calculated on a point system, with points awarded for attendance, participation,  $1^{\rm st}$  to  $5^{\rm th}$  places, achievement of PB's and records achieved in events at Friday night club competition.

Male	Female
1. Toby Smith	1. Iris Harrison
2. Harrison Rahe	2. Isla Refalo
3. Troy Golding	3. Matilda Ashford
1. Kobe Adeleke	1. Chloe Lake
2. Hunter Day	2. Heidi Kiefer
3. Jack Brisbin	3. Emily Rugendyke
<ol> <li>Sebastian Banks</li> </ol>	1. Zoe Smith
2. Augustin Fleming	2. Eva Nightingale
3. Kit Llewellyn	3. Matila Beisler
1. Jake Pittman	1. Ellen Roozendall
2. Alexander Rugendyke	2. Lola Terjesen-Soem
3. Constantine Arkhipov	3. River James
Maximillian Macey	1. Lola Adeleke
2. Aston Fourie	2. Lexi Karle
3. Noah Pepperell	3. Nova Reynell
1. Leo Terjesen-Soem	1. Eleanor Flemming
2. Emyr Mutton	2. Zoe Coulson
3. Samuel Rugendyke	3. Kyah Williams
1. Marlon Boonaerts	1. Charlotte Porter
2. Robert Macey	2. Elizabeth Hendricks
3. Oliver Brookes	3. Sophia Arkipova
1. Jake Hoare	1. Isla Mumford
2. Jackson Sceats	2. Honey James
	3. Jazmin McCusker
	1. Isabella Day
2. Patrick Turnbull	2. Grace Lavers
3. Harrison Brookes	3. Quinn Llewellyn
1. Koen Mason	Bronte Scahill
2. Connor Caulfield	2. Zara O'Sullivan
3. No Award	3. No Award
Keyser Sanderson	Ava Boonaerts
2. Ethan Minett	2. Michaela Kearns
3. Oliver Szymanski	3. Eva Lynch
	<ol> <li>Toby Smith</li> <li>Harrison Rahe</li> <li>Troy Golding</li> <li>Kobe Adeleke</li> <li>Hunter Day</li> <li>Jack Brisbin</li> <li>Sebastian Banks</li> <li>Augustin Fleming</li> <li>Kit Llewellyn</li> <li>Jake Pittman</li> <li>Alexander Rugendyke</li> <li>Constantine Arkhipov</li> <li>Maximillian Macey</li> <li>Aston Fourie</li> <li>Noah Pepperell</li> <li>Leo Terjesen-Soem</li> <li>Emyr Mutton</li> <li>Samuel Rugendyke</li> <li>Marlon Boonaerts</li> <li>Robert Macey</li> <li>Oliver Brookes</li> <li>Jake Hoare</li> <li>Jackson Sceats</li> <li>Thomas Turnbull</li> <li>Theo Boonaerts</li> <li>Patrick Turnbull</li> <li>Harrison Brookes</li> <li>Koen Mason</li> <li>Connor Caulfield</li> <li>No Award</li> <li>Keyser Sanderson</li> <li>Ethan Minett</li> </ol>

# **5.7 Encouragement Awards**

Encouragement Awards are nominated by Age Managers to recognize those athletes who have made a dedicated and sustained effort throughout the season. Recipients

cannot have received an age champion award.

	Male	Female
Under 6	Lauchlan McKenzie	Rhiley Drysdale
Under 7	Alexander Stevenson	Maja Clarke
Under 8	Arlo Garnett	Ellie Kiefer
Under 9	Alex Stevenson	Jessie Hoare
Under 10	Hendrix Ettler	Evelyn Baker
Under 11	Hunter Dawkings	Savannah Day
Under 12	Ty Williams	Charlie Brisbin
Under 13	Hunter Rideout	No Award
Under 14	AJ Joffrin	No Award
Under 15	No Award	No Award
Under 17	Sienna Scahill	No Award

# 6 Records

# 6.1 Records set in 2023/2024

Congratulations to the following athletes who set new records this year.

NAME	AGE	EVENT	RESULT	DATE ACHIEVED
Sienna Scahill	U17G	400m	1:06.14	17/11/2023
Oliver Szymanski	U17B	100m Hurdles	14.87	01/03/2024
Kobe Adeleke	U7B	Discus	17.46	16/02/2024
Leo Terjesen-Soem	U11B	Discus	34.27	01/03/2024

## 6.2 Centre records at end 2023/2024

UNDER 6 GIRLS CLUB RECORDS			
EVENT	NAME	RESULT	DATE ACHIEVED
50M	K Coombes	9.42	01/11/1990
70M	L Dunn	12.05	01/03/1985
100M	Kylie Coombes	18.73	01/03/1991
200m	Charlotte Rousell	41.87	06/01/2012
300M (Pack)	Charlotte Rousell	1-10.55	16/12/2011

Long Jump	Georgia Gordon	2.05	40/40/0000
	Georgia Gordon	2.85	19/12/2003
Shot Put	Katelyn Casey Kennedy	4.46	02/02/2018
Discus	Rebecca Dick	11.40	27/02/2004
<b>UNDER 6 BOYS CLUB</b>	RECORDS		
EVENT	NAME	RESULT	DATE ACHIEVED
50M	Trent Buhagiar	8.86	02/02/2007
70M	Tim Bell	12.56	01/03/1992
100M	S Dixon	17.91	01/03/1990
200m	A Myles	39.49	01/02/1990
300M (Pack)	J O'Donnell	1-07.4	02/03/2001
Long Jump	T Buhagiar	2.96	05/03/2004
Shot Put	Kobe Adeleke	7.15	27/01/2023
Discus	T Buhagiar	14.54	31/10/2003
<b>UNDER 7 GIRLS CLUB</b>	RECORDS		
EVENT	NAME	RESULT	DATE ACHIEVED
50M	Kristy Knight	8.91	01/01/1994
70M	A Peters	11.51	01/03/1991
100M	A Peters	17.3	01/03/1991
200m	M O'Connor	38.12	22/11/1991
500M (Pack)	Kylie Coombes	1-59.36	06/03/1992
Long Jump	Georgia Gordon	2.99	17/12/2004
Discus	Emily Diaz	14.35	14/01/2005
Shot Put	K Reilly	8.92	01/11/1987

UNDER 7 BOYS CLUB RECORDS			
EVENT	NAME	RESULT	DATE ACHIEVED
50M	L Cornish	8.7	24/03/2000
70M	Tim Bell	11.37	01/03/1993
100M	J Moore	16.54	01/03/1990
200m	R Hall	35.85	01/03/1998
500M (Pack)	R Hall	1-44.49	01/02/1988
Long Jump	T Buhagiar	3.32	28/01/2005
Shot Put	D Whitehead	7.3	01/02/1984
Discus	Kobe Adeleke	17.46	16/02/2024
<b>UNDER 8 GIRLS CLU</b>	B RECORDS		
EVENT	NAME	RESULT	DATE ACHIEVED
70M	A Beauchamp	11.17	01/01/1991
100M	L Dunn	16.22	01/03/1987
200M	Kylie Coombes	36.50	05/03/1993
400M	A Murphy	1-22.33	07/02/1992
60M hurdles	C Hardwick	12.20	20/03/1998
Long Jump	Leisel Collins	3.56	19/10/2012
Shot Put	S Hudson	6.81	01/01/1990
Discus	S Hudson	16.03	01/01/1990
700M Pack	A Murphy	2-38.40	13/03/1992
<b>UNDER 8 BOYS CLUE</b>	RECORDS		
EVENT	NAME	RESULT	DATE ACHIEVED
70M	T McDonald	11.10	07/01/2000
100M	R Hall	15.78	01/03/1989
200M	R Hall	33.92	01/03/1989
400M	R Hall	1-16.66	01/12/1988
60M hurdles	Luke Donahue	11.40	05/12/1997
Long Jump	Kingston Alabi	3.86	08/03/2019
Shot Put	N Coffey	9.72	01/11/1987

Discus	C Currie	22.92	31/12/1993
700M Pack	R Hall	2-27.18	01/12/1988
UNDER 9 GIRLS CI			
EVENT	NAME	RESULT	DATE ACHIEVED
70M	K Rowbotham	10.59	01/03/2002
100M	Shellie Wilkes	15.30	26/03/1999
200M	Shellie Wilkes	32.70	26/03/1999
400M	Emily Mullen	1-15.60	27/03/1998
800M	Emily Mullen	2-52.7	27/03/1998
700M Walk	Samantha Tomlin	4-07.50	14/03/1997
60M hurdles	Shellie Wilkes	11.00	26/03/1999
Long Jump	Sophie Pratt	3.71	04/12/2015
High Jump	B Whitehead	1.15	01/12/1996
Shot Put	E Cansdale	7.35	15/03/2002
Discus	Emily Diaz	21.49	23/02/2007
UNDER 9 BOYS CL			
EVENT	NAME	RESULT	DATE ACHIEVED
70M	Luke Podnar	10.87	10/11/2006
100M	J Ross & D Whitehead	14.61	01/01/1990
200m	D Whitehead	31.70	01/03/1986
400m	R Hall	1-12.04	01/10/1989
800M	R Hall	2-41.79	01/03/1990
700M Walk	D Booth	3-52.52	27/02/1997
60M hurdles	Joshua Ross	10.09	01/11/1989
Long Jump	Kingston Alabi	4.11	06/03/2020
High Jump	R Hall, J Ross, D Booth	1.25	01/03/1990
Shot Put	J McMaster	10.23	08/11/1991
Discus	C Currie	25.74	24/02/1995
UNDER 10 GIRLS (		23.74	24/02/1333
EVENT	NAME	RESULT	DATE ACHIEVED
70M	Shellie Wilkes	10.70	17/03/2000
100M	J Peterson	14.56	01/02/1987
200M	Shellie Wilkes	31.30	17/03/2000
400M	Amanda Morris	1-11.20	13/02/1998
800M	K Dent	2-46.40	01/02/1990
1100M Walk	Samantha Tomlin	6-02.50	13/03/1998
60M Hurdles	J Peterson	10.62	01/02/1987
Long Jump	Teigan Miller	4.17	10/03/2006
High Jump	Samantha Tomlin	1.22	07/11/1997
Shot Put	E Cansdale	8.22	03/01/2003
Discus	Laura Reeves	21.38	10/03/2017
UNDER 10 BOYS C			,,,
EVENT	NAME	RESULT	DATE ACHIEVED
70M	Luke Donahue	10.30	24/03/2000
100M	D Whitehead	13.22	01/03/1987
200M	R Hall	30.40	01/02/1991
400M	R Hall	1-12.05	01/02/1991
800M	R Hall	2-43.08	01/03/1991
1100M Walk	D Booth	6-14.00	27/03/1998
60M Hurdles	P Haime	10.31	01/10/1986
Long Jump	Trent Buhagiar	4.28	29/02/2008
High Jump	D Whitehead	1.38	01/10/1986
Shot Put	T Arnold	8.76	01/12/1985

Discus	L Crutcher	32.80	01/02/1985
UNDER 11 GIRLS C	LUB RECORDS		
EVENT	NAME	RESULT	DATE ACHIEVED
100M	B Martin	14.07	01/03/1991
200M	Shellie Wilkes	30.00	23/03/2001
400M	Shellie Wilkes	1-06.50	23/03/2001
800M	Jessie Blackwell	2:40.32	17/11/2017
1500M	Jessie Blackwell	5:20.03	15/12/2017
1100M Walk	Samantha Tomlin	6-07.10	30/10/1998
80M Hurdles	Lilly Hodder	16.54	15/01/2021
Long Jump	Amanda Thorpe	4.27	07/03/2003
High Jump	Samantha Tomlin	1.33	05/03/1999
Triple Jump	Amanda Thorpe	9.08	31/01/2003
Shot Put	V Lovie	8.86	05/11/1995
Discus	Laura Reeves	26.76	09/03/2018
Javelin	Charlotte Rousell	19.31	24/02/2017
<b>UNDER 11 BOYS C</b>	LUB RECORDS		
EVENT	NAME	RESULT	DATE ACHIEVED
100M	Joshua Ross	13.41	06/03/1992
200M	Luke Donahue	30.00	17/11/2000
400M	P McInerney	1-08.00	01/03/1990
800M	R Hall	2-34.36	08/11/1991
1500M	J Stratton	5-26.2	23/03/2001
1100M Walk	D Booth	6-11.7	02/10/1998
80M Hurdles	Oliver Brookes	16.60	03/03/2023
Long Jump	Luke Podnar	4.92	06/02/2009
High Jump	D Whitehead	1.45	01/12/1987
Triple Jump	B Williame	9.14	28/11/2003
Shot Put	B Rogers	10.18	11/02/2011
Discus	Leo Terjesen-Soem	34.27	01/03/2024
Javelin	Zane Smith	21.56	11/11/2016
UNDER 12 GIRLS C			
EVENT	NAME	RESULT	DATE ACHIEVED
100M	Cassandra Webber	13.47	12/01/2007
200M	Cassandra Webber	28.70	09/03/2007
400M	Cassandra Webber	1-07.64	08/12/2006
800M	Megan Underhill	2-32.77	01/02/1989
1500M	Megan Underhill	5-00.15	01/02/1989
1500M Walk	Samantha Tomlin	8-43.70	24/03/2000
80M Hurdles	Layla Graham	17.10	13/03/2020
Long Jump	Amanda Thorpe	5.15	05/03/2004
High Jump	J Peterson	1.45	01/03/1989
Triple Jump	Amanda Thorpe	10.35	05/03/2004
Shot Put	A McMaster	10.48	24/01/1997
Discus	E Cansdale	23.65	11/03/2005
Javelin	Leisel Collins	23.38	04/11/2016
UNDER 12 BOYS C			J ., 11, 2010
EVENT	NAME	RESULT	DATE ACHIEVED
100M	B Best	13.37	11/01/2013
200M	Tyrone Dorrell	27.51	01/12/2017
400M	R Hall	1-04.54	11/12/1992
800M	M Barron	2-31.38	01/02/1987
1500M	R Hall	5-10.58	26/02/1993
1300141	NTIGII	3 10.30	20/02/1333

1500M Walk	R Ryan	8-56.31	15/02/2002
80M Hurdles	Oliver Szymanski	15.52	21/02/2020
Long Jump	B Williame	4.82	11/03/2005
High Jump	Tyrone Dorrell	1.54	02/03/2018
Triple Jump	B Williame	10.22	15/10/2004
Shot Put	A Lovie	10.66	01/01/1991
Discus	Tyrone Dorrell	34.61	06/10/2017
Javelin	Cameron Steer	25.35	30/01/2015
<b>UNDER 13 GIRLS CLU</b>	JB RECORDS		
EVENT	NAME	RESULT	DATE ACHIEVED
100M	Hayley Oliver	13.10	02/10/1995
200M	Kylie Wildman	27.80	26/03/1999
400M	Katherine Peksis	1-02.60	07/03/1997
800M	Katherine Peksis	2-27.55	01/11/1996
1500M	Megan Underhill	4-55.34	01/11/1989
3000M	Daisy Duguid	11-45.05	11/11/2016
1500M Walk	K Hall	8-00.01	01/12/1988
80M Hurdles	Kylie Wildman	13.50	26/03/1999
200M Hurdles	Kylie Wildman	29.90	26/03/1999
Long Jump	Amanda Thorpe	4.95	04/03/2005
High Jump	Tahnee Ball	1.54	26/02/2016
Triple Jump	Amanda Thorpe	10.61	12/11/2004
Shot Put	D Searston	9.36	03/02/1995
Discus	Laura Reeves	32.88	22/02/2019
Javelin	Laura Reeves	27.38	08/03/2019

UNDER 13 BOYS CLUB RECORDS			
EVENT	NAME	RESULT	DATE ACHIEVED
100M	Chris Marshall	12.22	01/02/1987
200M	Cameron Steer	27.14	27/11/2015
400M	Chris Marshall	1-01.66	01/12/1986
800M	N Tiko	2-27.04	07/03/2003
1500M	Chris Marshall	4-55.94	01/12/1986
3000M	J Stratton	10-29.82	07/03/2003
1500M Walk	David Mainwaring	7-55.97	28/02/2003
80M Hurdles	Chris Wood	13.30	27/03/1998
200M Hurdles	Cameron Steer	29.19	19/02/2016
Long Jump	Cameron Steer	5.30	19/02/2016
High Jump	D Whitehead	1.60	01/12/1989
Triple Jump	Luke Donahue	10.45	06/12/2002
Shot Put	A Lovie	13.03	20/03/1992
Discus	Aaron Hamstra	35.80	13/03/1998
Javelin	Aaron Hamstra	32.35	06/03/1998
<b>UNDER 14 GIRLS C</b>	CLUB RECORDS		
EVENT	NAME	RESULT	DATE ACHIEVED
100M	Hayley Oliver	13.20	08/11/1996
200M	K Shackleton	27.60	27/02/1998
400M	Sienna Scahill	1:02.37	11/12/2020
800M	Sienna Scahill	2:23.24	27/11/2020
1500M	Sienna Scahill	4:47.79	11/12/2020
3000M	Sienna Scahill	10:11.93	15/01/2021
1500M Walk	K Hall	8-14.82	01/01/1990
80M Hurdles	Kylie Wildman	13.10	03/12/1999

200M Hurdles	Kylie Wildman	31.40	11/02/2000
Long Jump	Shellie Wilkes	5.10	24/10/2003
High Jump	Tara Shackleton	1.62	03/03/1995
Triple Jump	Amanda Thorpe	10.69	18/11/2005
Shot Put	D Searston	9.64	20/10/1995
Discus	C Edwards	24.77	16/02/2001
Javelin	Susan Sobczak	21.66	17/03/2000
<b>UNDER 14 BOYS CLUI</b>	B RECORDS		
EVENT	NAME	RESULT	DATE ACHIEVED
100M	T Edwards	12.15	01/10/1989
200M	P Steel	24.96	18/10/2002
400M	C Marshall, A Hamstra	59.80	01/02/1998
800M	Dylan Buhagiar	2-28.85	14/03/2008
1500M	Tom Herbert	4-53.27	10/03/2017
3000M	J Stratton	10-22.26	26/03/2004
1500M Walk	D Mainwaring	7-28.86	28/11/2003
90M Hurdles	C Wood	13.50	30/10/1998
200M Hurdles	Aaron Hamstra	27.50	27/11/1998
Long Jump	Cameron Steer	5.70	03/02/2017
High Jump	D Manuelle	1.75	28/02/2003
Triple Jump	Luke Donahue	11.19	30/01/2004
Shot Put	Aaron Hamstra	12.93	26/03/1999
Discus	Aaron Hamstra	49.26	26/03/1999
Javelin	Aaron Hamstra	47.50	12/03/1999

UNDER 15 GIRLS CLUB RECORDS			
EVENT	NAME	RESULT	DATE ACHIEVED
100M	D Taylor, D Edwards, K	13.20	01/10/1988
	Shackleton		
200M	Kara Shackleton	26.60	26/03/1999
400M	Sienna Scahill	1:07.74	14/01/2022
800M	Sienna Scahill	2:20.83	18/02/2022
1500M	Sienna Scahill	5:01.22	11/02/2022
3000M	Sienna Scahill	11:04.57	11/03/2022
1500M Walk	Sarah Walkley	8-13.80	27/02/1998
90M Hurdles	Jessica Morrell	14.50	26/03/1999
300M Hurdles	Kyla Tucker	54.34	18/11/2016
Long Jump	Samantha Tomlin	5.08	14/03/2003
High Jump	Tara Shackleton	1.66	05/01/1996
Triple Jump	Samantha Tomlin	9.69	06/12/2002
Shot Put	Susan Sobczak	10.11	23/03/2001
Discus	Amanda Bartrim	26.60	10/03/2006
Javelin	Susan Sobczak	28.07	23/03/2001
<b>UNDER 15 BOYS CLU</b>	JB RECORDS		
EVENT	NAME	RESULT	DATE ACHIEVED
100M	T Edwards	11.83	01/02/1991
200M	Luka Szymanski	23.89	24/01/2020
400M	Luka Szymanski	54.48	13/03/2020
800M	C Marshall	2-20.65	01/01/1989
1500M	J Stratton	4-47.59	26/11/2004
3000M	J Stratton	10-26.37	19/11/2004

1500M Walk	Cameron Bruce	8-24.58	03/03/2006	
100m Hurdles	C Wood	14.80	08/10/1999	
300M Hurdles	Luke Brown	45.70	18/11/2016	
Long Jump	Robert Cross	5.90	14/03/2008	
High Jump	D Manuelle	1.70	09/12/2003	
Triple Jump	Luke Donahue	11.80	18/02/2005	
Shot Put	Aaron Hamstra	14.62	24/03/2000	
Discus	Aaron Hamstra	54.79	15/03/2000	
Javelin	Aaron Hamstra	55.91	04/02/2000	
<b>UNDER 16 GIRLS C</b>	LUB RECORDS			
EVENT	NAME	RESULT	DATE ACHIEVED	
100M	Mikayla Sonter	13.77	17/01/2014	
200M	Mikayla Sonter	28.96	14/02/2014	
400M	Mikayla Sonter	1-05.26	07/02/2014	
800M	Georgia Gordon	2-55.22	06/12/2013	
1500M	Abigail Grimes	6-03.11	07/10/2016	
3000M	Abigail Grimes	12-38.81	21/10/2016	
1500M Walk				
100M Hurdles	Mikayla Sonter	18.28	07/02/2014	
300M Hurdles	-			
Long Jump	Mikayla Sonter	4.69	14/02/2014	
High Jump	Abigail Grimes	1.50	24/02/2017	
Triple Jump	Abigail Grimes	9.91	18/11/2016	
Shot Put	Maddison Langman	8.86	26/02/2016	
Discus	Rochelle Martin	26.87	19/03/2010	
Javelin	Maddison Langman	28.94	18/12/2015	
60M Run	Kiara Kelly	8.50	27/11/2015	
Senarate records f	or 1116 and 1117 athletes int	roduced in 2007/	2008 season Previous	

Separate records for U16 and U17 athletes introduced in 2007/2008 season. Previous combined records are included in the U17 athlete records.

UNDER 16 BOYS CLUB RECORDS							
EVENT	NAME	RESULT	DATE ACHIEVED				
100M	Robert Cross	12.71	10/10/2008				
200M	Mathew Isok	26.95	16/11/2007				
400M	Mathew Isok	1-00.99	16/11/2007				
800M	Mathew Isok	2-21.39	11/01/2008				
1500M	Samson Hall	5:40.07	30/10/2015				
3000M	Mathew Isok	13-00.45	23/11/2007				
1500M Walk							
100M Hurdles	Mathew Isok	20.63	25/01/2008				
300M Hurdles							
Long Jump	Robert Cross	5.90	30/01/2009				
High Jump	Robert Cross	1.80	30/01/2009				
Triple Jump	Luke Martin	9.45	15/01/2010				
Shot Put	Jesse Quinell	11.17	01/11/2013				
Discus	Luke Martin	27.10	05/02/2010				
Javelin	Robert Cross	27.40	07/11/2008				
60M Run	Mathew Isok	7.97	14/03/2008				

Separate records for U16 and U17 athletes introduced in 2007/2008 season. Previous combined records are included in the U17 athlete records.

UNDER 17	7 GIRLS CLU	В	R	EC	ORI	os
E) (E) I		_			_	

3.02 III II GII					
EVENT	NAME	RESULT	DATE ACHIEVED		
100M	Mikayla Sonter	12.76	24/10/2014		
200M	Mikayla Sonter	28.19	27/02/2015		

400M	Sienna Schahill	1:06.14	17/11/2023	
800M	Sienna Scahill	2.29.25	13/01/2023	
1500M	Sienna Scahill	4.57.45	17/02/2023	
3000M	Sienna Scahill	10.57.70	11/11/2022	
1500M Walk	India Duguid	6:57.15	18/12/2020	
100M Hurdles	Mikayla Sonter	17.97	24/10/2014	
300M Hurdles	Sienna Scahill	54.54	10/03/2023	
Long Jump	Mikayla Sonter	4.80	27/02/2015	
High Jump	Abigail Grimes	1.50	17/11/2017	
Triple Jump	Abigail Grimes	9.92	01/12/2017	
Shot Put	Rochelle Martin	11.00	14/01/2011	
Discus	Rochelle Martin	27.80	21/01/2011	
Javelin	Rochelle Martin	29.50	28/01/2011	

Separate records for U16 and U17 athletes introduced in 2007/2008 season. Previous combined records are included in the U17 athlete records.

# UNDER 17 BOYS CLUB RECORDS

EVENT	NAME	RESULT	DATE ACHIEVED	
100M	Luka Szymanski	12.05	30/10/2020	
200M	Luka Szymanski	23:47	15/01/2021	
400M	Luka Szymanski	55.91	11/12/2020	
800M	Oliver Ham	2:10.72	21/01/2022	
1500M	Oliver Ham	4:36.81	14/01/2022	
3000M	Oliver Ham	09:50.51	15/01/2021	
1500M Walk				
100M Hurdles	Oliver Szymanski	14.87	01/03/2024	
110M Hurdles	Luke Martin	18.27	04/10/2010	
300M Hurdles	Oliver Ham	47.86	11/02/2022	
Long Jump	Luka Szymanski	5.52	23/10/2020	
High Jump	Oliver Szymanski	1.73	02/02/2024	
Triple Jump	Oliver Rimmer	11.80	02/03/2018	
Shot Put	Bailey Holt	11.90	05/02/2021	
Javelin	Bailey Holt	40.72	12/03/2021	
Discus	Luke Martin	34.14	11/02/2011	

Separate records for U16 and U17 athletes introduced in 2007/2008 season. Previous combined records are included in the U17 athlete records.



# 7 Minutes of Annual General Meeting 2022/2023

Annual General Meeting 2023 Minutes.

DATE: 26 May 2023 Time: 5.30 pm

Location: Broken Bay Ballroom, Ettalong Diggers, Ettalong Beach

1	Confirmation of Quorum-
	Attendance: Executive Members: Christine Murphy (President), Fiona Wadeson (Vice President), Zoe Brookes (Secretary), Sylvia Turnbull (Treasurer), Rochelle Martin (Registrar). General Committee: Judi Brookes, Deb Van Breugel, Celeste Boonaerts,
	Sharon Boonaerts, Tom Szymanski, Sarah El-Moselhi
	- Quorum Confirmed as per Constitution Clause 25.1
2	The President welcomed all attendees. Held Welcome to Country.
3	Annual General Meeting to be declared open- Meeting declared open at 5:12pm
4	Apologies- Kevin Willis, Slav Arkhipov
5	Minutes of the 2022 AGM to be accepted and any Business arising.  Draft Minutes were circulated by email with AGM notice and tabled with Annual Report. No actions arising.  -Move to adopt 2022 minutes. Motioned by Sylvia Turnbull (Treasurer) and seconded by Deb Van Breugel.
6	Adoption of the Committee Reports 2022/2023 including Audited Financial report.
	- Full reports of all committee members are included in the 22/23 Annual Report
	and reported during the meeting.
	- Audited Report was prepared by Meany and Associates. The full financial
	statements were tabled at the meeting.  Points to note:
	- Registration and Canteen Income was up this year. Mainly due to the increased
	number of athletes.  - We received a grant of \$3387 for new equipment from the NSW State
	Government.
	- LA NSW increased their fees, but our club did not pass on this increase for the second year in a row.
	<ul> <li>Major Sponsorship funds granted last year appear in this year's figures.</li> </ul>
	- Small profit of \$4938 realised overall for the year.
	- Cash in canteen account \$17403 (up from \$13957 from last year)
	- Cash held in Club's working account is \$45892 (up from \$36714 last year)
7	Declare all committee positions vacant for 2023/2024
	- Christine to step down as President. Committee thanked her for huge
	contribution to the role.



- Committee Member protection/ Grievance Role requires some clarification around duties.
- The President declared all committee positions vacant
- The following nominations were received.

#### 8 Election of office bearers for 2023/2024 season

#### **Executive Committee:**

- a) President- Vacant
- b) Vice-President- Vacant
- c) Secretary- Zoe Brookes
- d) Treasurer- Christine Murphy
- e) Registrar- Deborah Van Breugel
- f) Officer for Records and Ranking- Celeste Boonaerts/ Sharon Boonaerts
- g) Officer for Championships- Rochelle Martin
- h) Officer for Public Relations, Publicity- Sarah El-Moselhi
- i) Officer for Trophies and Encouragement- Deborah Van Breugel
- j) Officer for Coaching and Education- Kevin Wills and Slav Arkhipov
- k) Officer for Technical and Equipment- Tom Szymanski
- l) Officer for Track and Field Co-ordination- Vacant
- m) Officer for Canteen- Judi Brookes
- n) Officer for Uniforms- Rochelle Martin
- o) Officer for Sponsorship- Vacant
- p) Officer for First Aid- Vacant
- q) Officer for Member Protection- Vacant

Moved to accept the above nominations to the committee. Nominations accepted. Nominations accepted unanimously to take on above committee roles for 2023/2024 season.

Committee members will continue to look for people interested to step up for the remaining casual vacancies.



9	General Business
	a) Approval of Auditor for 2023/2024 Financial Year
	<ul> <li>Meany and Associates was nominated to be the auditor by Sylvia Turnbull and Seconded by Zoe Brookes. Unanimously agreed by committee.</li> </ul>
	b) Approval of Signatories on the Centre's Bank- Secretary (Zoe Brookes) and Treasurer (Christine Murphy) agreed.
	c) <b>Disclosure of interests</b> - no tabled conflicts of interest.
10	Time of closure of Annual General Meeting Meeting closed at 5:45pm.

# 8. Audited Financial Statements

**Not-For-Profit-Association Report** 

**Woy Woy Little Athletics** 

For the year ended 31 March 2024



# **Profit and Loss**

Woy Woy Little Athletics For the year ended 31 March 2024 Cash Basis

2024 2023

rading Income		
Canteen Sales	6,652.12	8,518 85
Equipment Hire		350.00
Other Revenue		3,552.00
Registrations - Club	13,668.38	T3,083.44
Sponsorship	5,800.00	5,500.00
Uniform Sales	582.00	65J.00
Total Trading Income	26,702.50	31,655.29
Cost of Sales		
Cost of Goods Sold	484.40	6,480.95
Total Cost of Sales	484.40	6,480.95
Gross Profit	26,218.10	25,174.34
Operating Expenses		
Bank Fees	38t.94	404.97
Canteen	3,851.72	4,065.25
Consulting & Accounting	100.00	297.00
D.preciation	1,513.00	1,886.00
Entertainment	2,488.90	2,7T0.8T
Equipment	7,043.73	1,149.24
General Expenses	3,789.90	1,856.04
Gro *nd Fees	2,563.60	2,449.84
Office Expenses	70.00	-
Postage	153.00	140.00
Printing & Stationery	78.47	54.21
Registration & Insurane	465.00	1,224.45
Repairs and Maintenance	253.00	231.00
Subscriptions	1,185.00	-
Telephone & Internet	-	29.90
Travel - National	217.31	-
Trophies	3,554.74	2,852.31
Uniforms	70.00	-
Website	1,167.90	825.40
Total Operating Expenses	28,947.21	20,236.42
Net Profit	(2,729.11)	4,937.92



# **Balance Sheet**

Woy Woy Little Athletics As at 31 March 2024 Cash Basis

		31 MAR 20Z4	31 MAR 2923
Assets			
Bank			
Canteen A/C	6,939.38		17,402.82
Working Account	25,139.31		45,891.98
WWLA-TERM DEPOSIT	30,000 00		
Total Bank	62,078.69		63,294.80
fixed Assets			
Less Accumulated Depreciation on Office Equipment	(1,299.00)		(1,299.00)
Office Equipment Total F-ixed Assets	1,299.00		1,299.00
Non-current Assets			
Accum Depreciation	(62,419.00)		(60,906.00)
Plant & Equipment	68,609.00		68,609.00
Total Non-current Assets	6,190.00		7,703.00
Total Assets	68,268.69		70,997.80
Net Assets	68,268.69		70,997.80
Equity			
Current Year Earnings	(2,729.11)		4,937.92
Retained Earnings	70,997.80		66,059.88
Total Equity	68,268.69		70,997.80



## Depreciation Schedule 2023

#### Woy Woy Little Athletics

Asset Code	Description Start Date	Original Cost	Priv. Use%	Opening Adj Value	Date	Additions Arr I	Bal.Ctirg	Value	Depreci Meth.	ation Rate%	Amo <b>unt</b>	Closing Adj. Val.
Group											·	
0	DEFIB Machine											
		2990		545				545	D	2000	109	436
1	Ride on Mower		1		1					4= 00		
0		3400	l	547	1			547	D	15.00	82	465
2	Track & Field Equipn	nent 61620		6612				6612	D	20.00	1322	F200
2	Lap top	1299		0012				1299	I	100.00	0	5290 0
3	Lap top	1233						1200	•			
sub-total	ls	69309		7704		0					1513	6191
	-		_			-						
Priv Use	sub-totals										0	
lon-dedu	uctible sub-totals										0	
et sub-	-totals										1513	
OTALS		69309	_	7704		0						6191
	-		_									
ESS TC	OTAL PRIVATE USE										0	
ESS TO	OTAL NON-DEDUCTIB	LE									0	
OTAL D	DEPRECIATION CLAIM	MED									1513	



# Woy Woy Peninsula Little Athletics centre Incorporated Committee's Report

The committee members present their report on the association for the financial year ended 31 March 2024.

#### **Committee Members**

The names of each person who has been a committee member during the year and to the date of this report are:

- President CHRISTINE MURPHY (ACTING)\_\_\_\_\_\_\_

   Vice President JET JAMES\_\_\_\_\_\_
- Treasurer CHRISTINE MURPHY\_\_\_\_\_
- Secretary ZOEBROOKES\_\_\_\_\_

# **Principal Activities**

The principal activities of the association during the financial year were:

Community Based activity centre which organises track & field events for children 5-17 years

# Significant Changes

to significant changes in the nature of the association's activity occurred during the financial year.

#### **Operating Result**

The loss of the association amounted to \$2729.11

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Members of the Committee.

**Christine Murphy** 

Dated 19 MAY 2024

# Woy Woy Peninsula Little Athletics centre Incorporated Independent Review Report to the members of

# Woy Woy Peninsula Little Athletics centre Incorporated

# Report on the financial Report

We have reviewed the accompanying financial report of Woy Woy Peninsula Little Athletics centre Incorporated (the association), which comprises the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the statement by members of the committee.

# Committee's Responsibility for the Financial Report

The committee of the association is *responsible* for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Associations Incorporation Act and for such internal control as the committee determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

# Our Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our review. We conducted our review in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An review involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial *report*, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the association's preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the association's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the committee, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

# Opinion

In our opinion, the financial report presents fairly in all material respects the financial position of Woy Woy Peninsula Little Athletics Inc as at the 31" of March 2024 and its financial performance

## for the year ended

Dated this 15<sup>t1</sup> day of May 2024

Meany & Associates Pty Ltd

FIPA

6 Railway St Wy Woy NS W 2256

Carriel Meany